ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2006
1:35 p. m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senat or Gene Therri aul t

Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senator Hollis French

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 261

"An Act relating to the designation of traffic safety corridors;

relating to the bail or fine for an offense commtted
traffic safety corridor and to separately accounting for
fines; and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 261

SHORT TI TLE: REGULATI ON OF HWS; TRAFFI C OFFENSES
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 01/ 06 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 06 (S) TRA, FIN

W TNESS REG STER

JEFF OTTESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 261

KURT SM TH
State Traffic and Safety Engi neer
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- February 9,

in a
such

2006



3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 261.

LI EUTENANT JAMES HELGOE, Legi sl ative Liaison
Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

PO Box 111200

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 261.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Adm ni strator

H ghway Safety O fice

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 261.

DOUG WOOLI VER, Admi ni strative Attorney

Al aska Court System

303 K St.

Anchor age, AK 99501-2084

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 261 with one change.

RON MARTI NDALE

H ghway Safety | nprovenent Program (HSI P)
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
Anchorage, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 261.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGE NS called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:35:58 PM Present were Senators
Al bert Kookesh, Hollis French, John Cowdery, and Chair Charlie
Huggi ns.

1:36: 40 PM

SB 261- REGULATI ON OF HWYS; TRAFFI C OFFENSES

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGEA NS announced SB 261 to be wup for
consi derati on.

JEFF  OITESEN, Director, D vision of Program Devel opnent,

Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF),
expl ained that this bill was triggered by a spate of very high-

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2006



visibility accidents and sone weather events. The idea was to
| ook for a way to keep nunmbers of accidents down. The tool they
found was to declare certain sections of road a safety corridor
and to double the fines in them

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if the departnment could place concrete
dividers on the highways so cars can't junp to the other side
and if federal funds would be avail able for such a project.

1:38: 53 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT j oi ned the conmittee.

MR. OITESEN replied that was a good suggestion, but nobst of the
hi ghways are two lanes that are used by permtted w de | oads
that need to have the extra width

SENATOR FRENCH commented that the <classic Seward H ghway
accident is someone drifting into on-comng traffic and killing
fol ks his age.

MR. OITESEN said other states have <crafted |anguage wth
criteria that would be used to nake the findings for safety
zones and he asked the chair to hold the bill so the departnent
could do further work on the matter. The departnent does a good
job of using safety data to prioritize and schedul e projects and
national statistics show the predomnant factor in traffic
accidents is generally the human factor.

CHAIR HUGGE NS agreed and pointed out that at some point the
department woul d need noney to inplenent their policies.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said that Virginia |awrakers set a naxinmm
dol l ar-specific fine at $500. They reasoned that a sign saying
“double fines” could be not as effective as a specified anount
since nost people are unaware of what the double anmunt would
be.

MR. OTTESEN replied that was a good idea. He added that
Washington State actually posts the dollar anmount of certain
fines on the sign.

SENATOR COWNDERY said the legislature should nmake it tougher on
peopl e who drive after losing their driver’s |license.

MR. OITESEN agreed that DU offenders often repeat-offend.

1:47: 23 PM

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2006



CHAIR HUGA NS asked how safety issues are identified especially
with regards to the areas identified today that have safety
chal | enges.

KURT SMTH, State Traffic and Safety Engineer, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), answered that the
departnment uses “the hard side” and “the soft side” approach.
The hard side is infrastructure inprovenents, which are
addressed by the Hi ghway Safety |nprovenent Program (HSIP) and
the soft side deals wth enforcement and education. He
expl ai ned:

Wth the HSIP, every year we go out and we |ook for
high crash locations and we figure out whether there
are counter nmeasures that work and basically figure

out that we can save this many lives - this many
injuries — what dollars do that - conpared to the cost
of construction - figure out a benefit cost ratio -

come up with a list that’s prioritized and we fund the
top projects of this |ist.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the funding cones from regular
capital appropriations or out of the safety fund where he wants
to direct 50 percent of these funds.

MR. OITESEN replied that the department receives safety funds
directly from the Federal H ghway Admnistration that are
designated for the HSIP. Dollars are taken out, though, if
safety laws are not up to federal standard. Those funds are
directed back to the departnent through the National H ghway
Traffic Safety Adm nistration (NHTSA) and are partially used on
t he soft si de and for i npl enent ati on of engi neering
i mprovenents.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he used a flat fee for signing a
stretch of highway.

MR SMTH responded that the estimtes vary depending on
particular conditions in a zone.

1:50: 37 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT comrented that the fiscal note didn't
i ndi cate how much noney the fines would bring in.

CHAIR HUGEA NS pointed out that this is not just a revenue
generator, but a safety mechani sm

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- February 9, 2006



SENATOR THERRI AULT asked why the funding has to be directed to
two different funding nechanisns for stretches of highway that
don’t neet certain criteria.

MR. OTTESEN answered because sone of Alaska's safety |laws don't
nmeet federal criterion, one of them being the open container
|aw. He said that 3 percent of the state’ s federal highway funds
are taken back because of those defects and then given back as
safety dol |l ars.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if Al aska has double fines in school
zones.

MR. OITESEN replied that only work zones have doubl e fines.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if a standard would be established for
signage and if using portable speed read-outs was a possibility
so people can see how fast they are going as they progress
through a zone. He asked if the departnent woul d consider adding
a trooper — “Because signs without a trooper are just signs....”

1:54:53 PM

MR SMTH replied that sign frequency would be dealt with the
sane as double-fine signs. Every place that has a speed limt
woul d have a double-fine safety zone sign incorporated with the
speed limt information. Using speed read-outs is a good idea as
well as linking the creation of a safety traffic corridor with
commtting resources for a trooper to be during increased
traffic tines.

MR. OTTESEN agreed and related that was done on the Seward
H ghway.

SENATOR FRENCH remarked that adding safety neasures to an area
of highway is enornously expensive, but adding two troopers on
t hat hi ghway year-round woul d probably be the cheapest and nost
effect way to reduce the nunber of accidents.

MR. OITESEN responded that the Al aska H ghway Safety Ofice had
a concentrated program in the past two years to increase
education about DWSs, speeding and reckless driving and coupled
that with key enforcenent strategies. It drove down the fata
accident rate from 92 to 100 per year to the |lowest in decades
and certainly the | owest when neasured against total traffic.

1: 57: 54 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- February 9, 2006



SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that the state of Oregon’s selection
criterion uses a three-year average of vehicle collisions that
are 110 percent above the three-year state average for simlar
types of highways. A priority for local state police is to add
at least 50 extra hours of enforcement per nonth. Oregon also
has a process for deconm ssioning those areas and he asked M.
Smith if he had considered that in Al aska.

MR SMTH replied that decomm ssioning had not been thought
t hrough. He speculated that the trouble is if a safety corridor
proves effective and then it gets elimnated, accidents nmay go
back up. Physical inprovenents would likely last after the signs
were renoved

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what the justification would be for
keepi ng double fines if people started using other roads and the
usage and nunber of accidents went down.

MR SMTH replied that the roads they are talking about wll
probably not have alternate routes and he doubted that usage
woul d change very nuch, but the justification would be to save
lives. “That’ s the quandary.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT reasoned that concept would justify doubling
fines on every road.

2:01: 27 PM
MR SMTH replied that the roads would initially have to
i ndicate a high accident rate above a set threshol d.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if a nunicipality could raise fines in other
zones, |ike school zones.

MR SMTH replied that he did not know for sure.

CHAIR HUGE NS expressed support for a program that would
forecast unsafe areas. He heard the comm ssioner of the
Department of Public Safety say on a TV program that the Parks
H ghway is the nost dangerous zone and asked how |ong that was
known.

2:04:59 PM

MR SMTH replied that he didn't know that was necessarily true.
Crash data has a lot of variables and can be |ooked at a |ot of
di fferent ways.

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2006



CHAIR HUGA NS expressed that he would support a nore
conprehensive bill.

MR. OITESEN conmented that he would like a bill that reeval uated
the results of the safety area every two years or so.

2:08: 24 PM

LI EUTENANT JAMES HELGOE, Al aska State Troopers, stated that the
Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) supported SB 261, because it
woul d act as a deterrent for speeders. He related that severa
ot her states decomm ssion safety areas once the desired effect
has been reached and he favored that concept, because then
sinple speeders aren’t continuing to be penalized when the
desired effect of making the road safer has been reached.

2:10: 52 PM
CHAIR HUGE NS asked who has the |ead responsible for safety on
t he Seward Hi ghway between the G rdwood and Anchor age.

LI EUTENANT HELGOE replied that the state troopers who are
stationed in Grdwod are responsible for that stretch of
hi ghway. The Anchorage Police Departnent takes over at MHugh
Cr eek.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked what he thought would work besides a police
presence on the road.

LI EUTENANT HELGCE replied that he felt that nost people want to
do the right things for the right reasons and a nedia canpaign

signs posted along the highway and just encouragenent statew de
from enforcenent would rem nd people to conply. Over 7,000 cars
a day drive between G rdwood and Anchor age.

2:13:51 PM
CHAI R HUGA NS asked how the state troopers receive DOIPF safety
statistics.

LI EUTENANT HELGOE answered that he gets statistics from G ndy
Cashen. If they identify an area of concern, officers are
of fered overtine to patrol the area.

2:15:46 PM
LI EUTENANT HELGOE said he just becane legislative liaison after
spendi ng 12 years on the road.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked him what his nunber one challenge is as the
departnent |iaison.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- February 9, 2006



LI EUTENANT HELGOE replied just getting the information right to
the legislature. For exanple, he had reviewed the Wisilla
statistics and found a m sunderstandi ng about it being the nost
dangerous section of highway. Oher roads are in that section
and not all 35 of the traffic fatalities occurred on the Parks
H ghway. He said his goal is to inprove public safety.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked what percentage of people in accidents were
under the influence.

LI EUTENANT HELGOE guessed about 20-30 percent.

2:19:29 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked what he thought the bill was overl ooki ng.

LI EUTENANT HELGOE replied that federal regulations cover placing
of concrete dividers, but the problem with concrete dividers is
that when people drive slowy, they slow everyone down and
sumer traffic builds up with RVs and vehicles with people who
want to go fishing — or an energency vehicle needs to get
somewhere. Access on the roadway should not be l|imted, but
fol ks need to drive responsibly and obey the speed limt.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if a half dozen safety zones popped up
around the state requiring from 2 to 5 troopers, what would be
the inplication on the workforce.

LI EUTENANT HELGCE replied that it would be difficult to say
wi t hout knowi ng the area they are tal king about.

2:21:51 PM

CI NDY CASHEN, Adm nistrator, H ghway Safety Ofice, Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), agreed wth
Li eutenant Helgoe. Currently one DU patrol is funded; their
special duty is to guard the corridor between Fairbanks into
Kenai. They would like to triple that nunber and DPS has
responded favorably. These positions would be on top of the 45
currently enpty positions.

2:23:44 PM

DOUG WOOLI VER, Adm nistrative Attorney, Alaska Court System
expressed concern about how the old conmputer system can’'t
di stingui sh between funds. However, he said the Court System has
a new conputer system in Anchorage, Fairbanks and Pal ner, which
can account for a whole variety of different funds. He said he

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2006



would work with the DOT to come up with good |anguage on that
i ssue.

2:25: 47 PM
CHAIR HUGGE NS asked what the process is when soneone gets a
ticket.

MR. WOOLI VER explained that nost tickets can just be mailed in
with noney attached, but a court appearance is required above a
certain speed.

2:27:29 PM

RON  MARTI NDALE, H ghway Safety | nprovenent Pr ogr am DOT
Anchorage, said he was trying to figure out how to develop the
criteria.

CHAI R HUGEA NS asked him to give a thunbnail sketch of proactive
t hi ngs the departnent had done in the |last 36 nonths.

MR. MARTI NDALE replied that the departnent’s data system can
track and identify probable locations a |ot better than before.
For instance, his region alone has a $13 nillion program
representing about 32 individual project l|locations that were all
identified with their database of crashes.

2: 30: 58 PM
MR SMTH said he manages the HSIP website that has that
i nformation.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if he tracks accidents in the Anchorage
area — for exanple at the intersection of Tudor and M nnesot a.

MR SMTH replied yes and that HSIP covers all public roads in
the state.

MR. MARTI NDALE expl ained that the DOTPF crash database contains
every reported crash by every police agency in the state
including all the self-report fornms for those that aren't
investigated by police. The nunicipality gets its data quicker
because it gets information directly fromthe police departnent.

MR. OTTESEN interjected that HSIP data follows a very circuitous
process before it gets to DOTPF, which is the last recipient and
cones in all at once in a rush

2:37:04 PM

SENATE TRA COWM TTEE - 9- February 9, 2006



MR. OITESEN said on the issue of the gap between project needs
and funding that for one region alone he received a |ist of $600
mllion dollars worth of projects that are “really on the
boards” and he anticipated needing funding for themin the next
coupl e of years. He enphasized that figure is $600 mllion above
current funding levels. On top of that, the Seward H ghway

wi dening project of $300 million and the Seward to denn
connection project that are being tal ked about in the |ong-range
transportation plan in Anchorage, adds up to another $1 billion

dollars. This does not take into account other regions in
Al aska. The bottom line is that nmany conpeting concerns are not
bei ng addressed.

2:38:50 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS asked if safety indicators influenced the program
al l ocation of assets.

MR. OTTESEN replied that the inherent nature of the HSIP program
is that it is reactive. He explained that fatalities are val ued
at $2 mllion and a fender-bender is valued at $2,000 for
statistic purposes and in that sense they are reacting to data.
He supported being nore proactive and suggested using citation
data that shows how people are behaving. One software programis
being used in 15 to 18 other states and Al aska is now | ooki ng at
it.

2.:41: 33 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked how data on specific accidents can be found.

MR SMTH replied that he would have to go into the highway
anal ysis database. He infornmed the commttee that the departnent
is working on a geographic information system that wll allow
people to draw up data froma map

CHAIR HUGA NS said that he didn't nmean to belabor this issue
but he wanted to work on it and make it cone full circle. There
being no further business to come before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 2:43:17 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- February 9, 2006



